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FINAL DECISION AND ORDER

This matter arose under tle Maryland OCClpational Safetv and Health Act, Labor and

Employment Article, Title 5, A.Llated Code of k a'Yzat. FOil! wing an accident on August

26, 2004 involving an employee ofR.E. Michel C<. ("EiPIOyerJ")' MOSH Compliance Officer

Christopher L. Miller conducted an inspection oft] e job ~ite. 0 February 8, 2005, the

I
Maryland Occupational Safety and Health Unit of he Di lision of Labor and Industry ("MOSH")

issued two citations to the Empld yer, alleging varJus violations, A hearing was held on

September 29, 2005, at which th parties introduced evid Inee, pn sented witnesses, and made

arguments. Thereafter, Thomas r- Welshko, Admrstratre Law Judge sitting as the Hearing

Examiner ("HE"), issued a Proposed Decision recc mmenhing that one of the two citations be
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The Employer filed a timely request for revi ew an;dthe Commissioner, exercising his

I ,Iauthority pursuant to Labor and Employment Artiel e, § 5-214(e), Annotated Code of Maryland,



ordered review. On May 8, 200 ,the Commissio er of abor a d Industry! held a review

hearing and heard arguments fro the parties. Bas d upor a revi w of the entire record

and consideration of the relevan law and the posit ons (i)ll~e pies, for the reasons set forth

below, the HE's recommendatio s are AFFIRME in Pl and ACA TED in part.

FINDINGS F FA T

The Employer is a whol sale distributor of heat in and ai conditioning equipment, parts,

and supplies. T,. 143; Rev. Tr.i5.' The Employ r oper tes a 3 0,000 square foot warehouse in

Glen Burnie, Maryland. The E1PIOyer uses this areho e as a collection point for equipment,

parts and supplies before ShiPPi1g those items to i cust mers. side the warehouse, the

Employer uses forklifts to load ,allets containing roduc for d livery onto its trucks. Tr. 146-

52. As of August 26,2004, ther of the accide t desc ibed be ow, the Employer had a written

safety program and provided saf ty training to em loyees on a r gular basis. MaSH Exhibit 5;

Rev. Tr. 5-6. At that time, the ployer's work les di I not re [uire forklift operators to wear

seat belts while performing for

On August 26,2004, Patrick Craig, a ware ouse I an and forklift operator, was loading an

outbound shipment into a straiJt truck from a loa ing d ck of e Employer's warehouse. Tr.

32; MaSH Exhibits 4 and 5. e truck's handbr e was inoper ble and the truck was not

IAt the time of the hearing, Robert L. Lawson wa .servi1.gas th Commissioner of Labor and
Industry and presided over the ~earing. J. Ronald eJultus, the current Commissioner of Labor
and Industry, has reviewed the Tcord thoroughly d iSS

I

es this decision.

2 Herein, the transcript of the September 29, 2005 earing will b referred to as "Tr." and the
transcript of the May 8, 2006 re I iew hearing befo e the ommis ioner as "Rev. Tr.".

secured with a wheel chock. Tr 35; MOSH Exhi it 5;

a seatbelt, although the forklift e was operating d d hav

2

-8. Mr. Craig was not wearing

elt in it. MaSH Exhibit 5.



. .,.
While Mr. Craig was loading a Illet onto the true ,the ck be an moving forward, which

caused the dock bridge to fail1 to fall down afte the ont wh els of the forklift had crossed

into the truck bed. fd. The rear rheels of the for ained 0 the dock. fd. When Mr.

Craig noticed that the forklift w s falling, he tried 0 stop it but c uld not. Id. The rear wheels

fell off the dock, which in turn a celerated the fo ard movemen of the truck. Id. The front

wheels of the forklift slipped on he tailgate of the ck, II nd the orklift slammed to the ground.

fd. Mr. Craig was ejected thrOUf the left-side rol over p otectio opening. fd. He was

rendered briefly unconscious byte impact and sur ered I two-in h forehead laceration when he

struck the ground, along with a iontusion on the b sal skul] area nd other minor abrasions and

contusions. MaSH Exhibit 5; ~bv. Tr. 7-8.

Following the accident, dn August 27,200 liance Officer Christopher L.

Miller conducted an inspection Jfthe job site. M

February 8, 2005, MOSH issued two citations agai st the Emplo er, each of which was

appealed. MaSH Exhibit 1. The HE vacated Cita .on 1, tern 1 d the accompanying penalties

and affirmed Citation 2, Item I. On review, :::C P~:l;bject to Citation 2, Item I.

MOSH charged the Emp oyer with a serio violation of 9 CFR § 1910.132(a), which

Citation 2, Item 1

requires that

[p]rotective equipment, ifc1uding personal rotec~ve equ pment for eyes, face,
head, and extremities, pr~tective clothing, rl spiratpry dev ces, and protective
shields and barriers, shal be provided, use ,and aintai d in a sanitary and
reliable condition where er it is necessary y reas n ofh ards of processes or
environment, chemical hazards, radiologic 1haz Ids, or echanical irritants
encountered in a manner Fapable of causin inj or imp innent in the function
of any part of the body Iough absorption, inhala ion, or hysical contact.
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MOSH Exhibit 1. On reviewbTore the Commiss oner, the Emp oyer did not contest the HE's

finding that the employee at fssle was not wearing a seat belt; an it is uncontested that the

Employer's work rules at that time did not require forklif operators to wear seatbelts. Tr.228,

In order to uphold the ci ation, the Commi: sioner must fi hd that MOSH has demonstrated

by a preponderance of the evidence that: (1) the s andarc at issue applies; (2) the Employer

failed to comply with the stan1d; (3) employees ",ere erosed °the violative condition; and

(4) the Employer knew or with fe exercise of rem onable diliger ce should have known of the

condition. See, e.g., Astra Phar aceutical Produc ts, Inc, 9 O.S H. Cas. (BNA) 2126 (R.C.

1981),aff'dinpart, 681 F.2d 6i (lstCir. 1982).

The Commissioner findsl that, while the Enllploye should have been on notice ofthe

hazard created by not requiring, mployees to weal seat belts, M<DSH has failed to demonstrate

that the cited standard applies in this case. The Rt view lommis~ion has applied the cited

standard, 29 CFR § 1910.132(a), to the use of seatpelts ij the lo] ging industry. SeeEd ChefJ

d/b/a! Ed ChejJ Logging, 9 o.sr. Cas. (BNA) 1813, 18S8 (198 ). However, more recent

publications from OSHA have created legitimate (Onfu+n rega ding its application to the use of

seatbelts while operating forJduls. See Directive N"umbr CPL ,-1.28, issued August II, 2000.J

OSHA has indicated that it no lluger interprets 29 CFR 11910. 32(a) to apply to the use of seat

belts on lifting equipment, but Jstead cites such s tuati0r unde the General Duty Clause,

Section 5(a)(I) of the OCCUPatidnalSafety and Health At Whi e the State of Maryland operates

under an oSHA-approved State plan and IS not dii ectly rund bv the OSHA interpretations, the

3 The Commissioner IS takmgJ~dlclal notice ofD ectrve Numb r CPL 2-1.28, Issued August 11,
2000. Judicial notice is appropriate where a fact i~ "capable of immediate and certain
verification by resort to sources whose accuracy i beyor d dispute." Faya v. Almaraz, 329 Md.
436,447 (1993).

256; Rev. Tr. 5-6, 18-19.
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· Commissioner finds that MOSH has failed to dem nstrat that th

this case. Accordingly, there is I 0 need to address the it es of

__ L._ .

For the foregoing reasons, the Commission r of
f . I

~(}(J4-1ni~.eJl-;2008, hereby ORDERS:

Standard at issue applies in

owledge or compliance.

1/0
bor an Industry on the I& day of

1. Citation 1, Item 1 for a serious viol tion 0 Md. C de Ann., Lab. & Empl. § 5-

104(a) with a proposed penalty

2. Citation 1, Item

5

§ 1910.132(a) and its

eview may be requested by

t Labor and Employment

Rules, Title 7, Chapter 200.


